Lilley, M. Goodwin, D. Moffitt, T. P. O’Sullivan, T. Prat-
tley, D. Sowman, J. Hislop, & R. Lindsay.

Rugby Football in Okato dates back to the very early
days when matches were played by members of the Armed
Constabulary and pioneer settlers. Later, about 1887, what
was known as the Parihaka team was formed, players being
drawn from between the districts of Oaonui and Koru, and
matches played with New Plymouth teams at Oakura.
Notable players for this team were Fred Mills, then
schoolmaster at Okato, and Fred Pearson, the mile runner.
Both represented Taranaki in the match against the first
visiting English team.

In 1894 the Diamond Club was formed in Okato. Promi-
nent players included Teddy Leedon, Lew Eustace, K. A.
(Bert) Andrews and Frank Gill, but about 1900 the name
was changed to Okato. In 1927 the Club actively supported
the Domain Board in preparing the present playing field on
the domain, and play commenced there a year or two later.
Subsequently the field was drained, levelled, and topdress-
ed, and resown.

The facilities at the Okato domain have been steadily im-
proved by management Committees over the years: 1955 —
raised seating for 400 provided. 1956 — Lighting No 1
ground. 1965 — No 2 ground established. 1970 — Lighting
No 2 ground.

In 1974 the Club was able to move into its new
clubrooms. These had been built at a cost of $20,000 and
with the assistance of approximately 2000 hours of volun-
tary labour.

The Club has produced many notable members of
Taranaki Representative teams, namely T. P. O’sullivan,
K. P. Hurley; D. Mathieson, B. Grant, B. McEldowney.

T. P. O’Sullivan was an All Black in 1960 - 61 -62, and
had played for N. Z. Colts in 1955 and N. Z. Juniors in
1959. Dave Mathieson played for NZ Maoris in 1960 as did
E. (Hiwi) Tauroa in 1951 and 1955.

Present All Black selector S. (Tiny) Hill played for Okato
before moving to Canterbury where he gained All Black
honours. The Clubs Senior team won the Taranaki cham-
pionship in 1952, 1975, and 1977. The third grade team won
the championship in 1966 and the Senior 4ths in 1972.

ATHLETIC RUGBY
FOOTBALL CLUB
(HAWERA) INC.

Established: 1925

Colours: Blue with Narrow Red and White Bands.
1985 MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

Patron: Ian Ross

President: Peter Cox

Chairman: G. G. Whalen

Secretary: John O’Dea

Treasurer: Keith Ranford

Club Captain: Kevin Patterson
Members of the Management Committee: Bob Wren (Snr
V.P.) Chris O’Dea (Jur V.P.), Ian Holdem (Schoolboy
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Convener), Brian Norgate, Fred Kumeroa, Peter Johnston,
Bruce Tobin, Daryl Dobson, Geoff Roberts, Ian Bishop.

Members of the Hawera Amateur Athletic Club were
responsible for the formation of the Athletic Rugby club. It
was their desire to keep together during the winter months
that promoted them to persuade their president, Mr. Athol
Grant to convene a meeting on February 21 1925. That
meeting marks the birthday of the Athletic Rugby club. The
foundation committee was: Patron: B. McCarthy; Presi-
dent, A. Grant; Vice-Presidents, R. H. Leece, R. P. Fulton,
T. Taylor, D. Strachan, P. O’Dea, H. N. Mathews;
Secretary, R. J. Plank; Treasurer, N. B. Inch; Committee,
M. R. Jones, R. I. McGregor, C. Hunt and P. Little.

The initial team had its difficulties during the first year.
But coached by 1924 All Black Dr. R. G. B Sinclair, and led
for the latter part of the season by commonwealth games
Gold Medalist javelin thrower, Stan Lay, it did sufficiently
well to demonstrate that the Athletic club had arrived and
was here to stay.

The official title however was not registered until 1940
although the name was in common usage. At one period the
club changed its name to that of ““Empire Old Boys’’ in an
effort to attract players who had attended various boarding
schools throughout the country and the Hawera Technical
High School. After two years, however the Club name
became Athletic again.

Young by comparison with some of the other Taranaki
Clubs, Athletic has nevertheless had its share of success.
The first Taranaki title was won for the Club in 1940 by its
Fourth grade team. In 1945 the third grade side won a
Taranaki title and in 1948 the senior team won the southern
division competition but was defeated 11-9 by Star in the
final.

The Club’s only All Black is Maurice Cockerill who
toured Australia in 1951. He was the team’s fullback and
enjoved outstanding success on the tour. Lance Hohaia
played for New Zealand Maoris on several occasions. In
1951 the senior team came 3rd equal in the Taranaki com-
petition assisted by top players Hohaia, Cockerill and Bill
Orr, later to become a prominent member of the 1957-1959
Ranfurly Shield Team.

The 3rd grade team of 1964, won the Taranaki title.
Unbeaten in 13 games with 1 draw, this team beat Stratford
9-3 in the final at New Plymouth.

From 1962 through to 1973 the Senior team was only
once out of the top 6 teams in Taranaki Rugby competition.
Successful coaches in this era included Gordon Tunnicliffe,
Bob Hunt, Garry Whalen, Lofty Henderson, Dennis Dug-
gan, and Gavin McCrea.

Winning 13 of the 18 games in 1974 Athletic won the Se-
cond Division competition and won promotion to First
Division for its 50th Jubilee year. A gradual decline in play-
ing strength finds our Senior side going into the TRFU
Centennial year as a participant in the Senior 3rd Grade.
But lower grade teams have enjoyed good years recently
and the future of this Club looks to be secure.

Every family has a “home”’ but it was not until 1961 that
Acthletic had its Clubrooms. The Headmaster’s house was
moved from the Hawera main school to Hicks Park.
Voluntary work updated and turned the building into a
suitable and friendly place to meet. As time went by it
became plain that these facilities were not adequate and
fundraising was launched in 1971 to raise $60,000 to erect
something more appropriate. Years of planning and input

of ideas finally resulted in a Sports Complex becoming a
reality in 1977. The Athletic Rugby Club and the Hawera
High School co-operated in the venture while financial
backup was received from the Hawera District council. The
club now has a fine lounge overlooking Hicks Park. Plans
are again under way, however, to extend and improve this
great asset.

PUKENGAHU FOOT-
BALL CLUB

The Pukengahu club was formed in 1924, with two
teams, a first junior and a third grade team.

A very strong committee was set up comprising most set-
tlers in the district. The games in those days were played on
Thursday afternoon. The playing ground was a paddock
next to the school but after a few years a better playing area
was offered by Mr J. D. Rowe opposite the Waihapa fac-
tory. The club went into recess when war broke out in 1939.
It re-formed again in 1943 but as it enlarged its boundary it
was more central to have the playing headquarters on Mr
W. Boner’s property at Skinner Road.

The team was successful in winning a Taranaki Cham-
pionship in 1946 and won the Central Division champion-
ship on several occasions. In 1951 a much better ground
was formed at the Bird Road School.

The club has gone into recess at the present time but
hopes of reviving interest in the club’s activities in the
future have not been altogether abandoned.

— J.F. Walsh

STRATHMORE
RUGBY FOOTBALL
CLUB

Established approx 1907
1985 MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
R. A. Coulton
P. F. Ford

The first recorded information of this club is a photo of
the team of 1907 which was successful in winning the Dean
Cup, a trophy presented for competition between teams
representing the Whangamomona, Strathmore and Toko
districts donated by the then proprietress of the
Whangamomona Hotel Mrs. Dean.

Incidentally this Cup is still competed for annually by the
three clubs.

Any records of the early years of the club were destroyed
by fire in 1923. However after the 1914-18 war the club
fielded a team in Central Taranaki Junior competition in
1920-23 playing all games in Stratford. The Strathmore
Saddle road at this time was still unmetalled and transport
was limited to a morning train service through Te Wera at
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9.00a.m. to Stratford returning at night. With the establish-
ment of construction camps in Tangarakau to complete the
rail link to Ohura in 1927 a Whangamomona Sub-Union
was formed comprising teams from Strathmore, Whanga,
Kohuratahi, Tahora, Tangarakau and Mangaone. This
Sub-Union continued until 1932 by which time the railroad
was completed and competitions lapsed. In 1947 with the
return of men from the 1939-45 war Strathmore again
entered a team in the Central Division Junior Grade and
competed with varying success until 1968. In 1958 the team
was at its height and a move was made to improve the
ground. In years gone by the dressing shed was alongside a
haystack. There were some empty houses on the Land and
Survey block and an approach was made by the club to pur-
chase one of these and erect a changing shed on a new
ground to which the club had shifted. Notable players to
have played for Strathmore were Con Coulton in the 1920’s
and then Ritchie Coles and Alan Jury in the 1960’s. Ritchie
Coles gained a place in the All Black trials & played for
North Island.

Although the club cannot now field a Junior team the
players available support the Toko and Stratford clubs. The
Club is still functioning socially and financially and has an-
nual games for the Dean cup with Toko and
Whangamomona.

TARIKI RUGBY
FOOTBALL CLUB

The first rugby match played at Tariki was against a
Tukapa junior team in 1896. Tariki were the first to win the
Snider Shield, an Inglewood County competition in 1909.

From 1920-60 Tariki played in the Central Division
junior competition. They had an early success during 1923,
winning the Taranaki Junior Championship.

Officers 1923: H. Rumble President, F. J. Stephens
Secretary, H. Kerr Selector. Team: M. Taylor (captain), E.
Loveridge (vice captain), J. Trass, E. Meuli, C. Hollis, F.
Butler, K. Meuli, L. Loveridge, T. Blanchard, C. Jones, J.
Wells, F. Laurence, E. Webber, A. Rumble, L. Hollis, F.
Fabish, A. Rumble, F. Hill, S. Laurence, R. Hucker, H.
Glenn and H. McAllum.

Tariki’s strongest period was after the 1939-45 war when
two teams, a junior and a third grade were fielded. They
won the Taranaki junior championship in 1948 and for the
third time in 1952.

Officers 1948: 1. Trass President, A. Laurence Secretary,
H. Loveridge Coach, L. Rumble Asst. Coach. The team:
G. Long (captain), G. Gladding (vice captain), D. Bell, M.
Rumble, R. Kerr, P. Knowles, K. Burkitt, W. Shipherd, I.
Hucker, K. Laurence, R. Wilson, L. Jackson, D. Fabish, S.
Long, J. Frost, J. Kennedy, K. Quigley, F. Gladding, T.
Hollis, A. Gordge and M. Mannex.

The 1952 team: T. Hollis, C. Mumby, W. Shipherd, E.
Butler, D. Mahon, P. Schumacker, M. Rumball, R.
Jackson, L. Jackson, B. Fabish, P. Knowles, L. Stachur-
ski, M. Kennedy, R. Lynn, John Kennedy, Jim Kennedy,
E. Gladding, S. Long, L. O’Keefe, M. Mannex, L. Rum-
ball, W. Karulus, N. Jordan, T. Simpson and C. Bocart.

With the amalgamation of dairy companies and farms in
this machine age, the village teams, such as Tariki have







